
CASCADE COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 28, 2007; 9:30 AM 

COURTHOUSE ANNEX ROOM 111 
 
 
 

PRESENT; Chairman Lance Olson, Commissioners Peggy Beltrone, and Joe Briggs. Mary 
Jaraczeski, Neil Ugrin, Earl Salley, David Munroe, Lonnie Cox, Roy Stock, Peggy Bailey, Jeff 
Hofstad, Jason Caughey, Travis Johnson, Terry Hilgendorf, Jan Popa, Rich Liebert, Bob Stubbs, 
Butch Weeler, Jane Lurdby, Jim Voegel, Theresa Diekhens, Steve Bolstad, Jess Anderson, Brian 
Clifton, Jackie O’Fallon, Media, and Marie Sickels. (Other staff members and public members were 
present and are not part of this record due to no signatures on the sign in sheet) 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER; 
Chairman Olson called the meeting to order at 9:30 am. 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE; 
 
 
READING OF THE WEEKLY CALENDAR; 
An additional meeting was added for Thursday at 10:00 am, regarding an architectural contract. 
 
 
PURCHASE ORDERS AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS; 
Commissioner Briggs made a MOTION to approve purchase orders and accounts payable warrants 
#159331 through #159159 totaling $1,016,483.15 dated 08/09/07 through 08/16/07. 
Motion carried 3-0 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA; 
Commissioner Briggs made a MOTION to approve minutes and minute entries and routine 
contracts as follows: 

 Cable 7 public access television annual renewal membership level 2 in the amount of 
$1,680.00 

 Centerville school district school nurse agreement with the Health Department in the amount 
of $28.00 per hour for120 hours per school year 

 Vaughn school district #27 school nurse agreement with the Health Department in the 
amount of $28.00 per hour for 27 hours per school year 

 University of New Mexico fetal alcohol spectrum amendment #6 with the Health 
Department in the amount of $35, 029.00 

 Spectrum medical agreement with Regional Youth Service Center to provide LPN services 
in the amount of $31,350.00 per year 

 Letter of understanding with Teamsters Pension Fund as per Craft Council Collective 
Bargaining Agreement for Solid Waste employees in the amount of $3.40 per hour 

Motion carried 3-0 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM #1 
PUBLIC HEARING WITH A MOTION TO APPROVE/DISAPPROVE RESOLUTION OF 
INTENT 07-54 AMENDING SECTIONS 1, 8, 11,  AND 14 OF COUNTY ZONING 
REGULATIONS 
Chairman Olson opened this Public Hearing at 9:34 am, and the reading of the public notice was 
waived without objection. 
Brian Clifton County Planning Director gave a synopsis of this Resolution of Intent and requested 
that the Commission not act on this item which the attorneys advised due to misprints of legal 
notices. This would allow more time for public comment with another public hearing to be held at 
the next commission meeting on September 11, 2007.  There was discussion concerning any new 
public comment on this matter; Mr. Clifton stated he had received any at this time. 
Chairman Olson called for Proponents: 
Richard Liebert approached the Commission stating he did make public comment to Mr. Clifton on 
August 17, 2007. He had questions concerning special permits, whom serves on the Zoning Board of 
Adjustments, and if any members where farmers. He also stated he was seeking clarification and was 
not an opponent. In addition he encouraged the Commission to hold evening meetings so that the 
public can attend. 
Chairman Olson called for Proponents two more times- no one approached the Commission. 
Chairman Olson called for Opponents three times- no one approached the Commission. 
The Commission decided that no action would be taken at this time and there will be another Public 
Hearing conducted at the next Commission meeting on September 11, 2007. 
Chairman Olson closed this Public Hearing at 9:48 am. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #2 
PUBLIC HEARING WITH A MOTION TO APPROVE/DISAPPROVE RESOLUTION OF 
INTENT 07-56 TO ADOPT AMENDED COUNTY SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 
Chairman Olson opened the Public Hearing at 9:49 am, and the reading of the public notice was 
waived without objection. 
Mr. Clifton gave synopsis of this Resolution of Intent and requested due to additional comments 
received and misprints of legal notices to not act on this today and hold another Public Hearing at the 
September 11, 2007 meeting. There was mention of tabling this item.  
Chairman Olson called for Proponents; 
Jan Popa approached the Commission stating that it is with reservation that she approves of the 
current subdivision regulations; she stated that they are too stringent in providing growth for the 
County.  Another concern Ms. Popa verbalized was the lack of man power and equipment for fire 
protection, she had further comments and suggestions concerning fire protection and requested the 
Commission remove the fire protection section until better revised.  
Steve Bolstad questioned if this was a call for proponents. 
Lonnie Cox approached the Commission and stated he agreed with Ms. Popa 100% He believed that 
fire protection is needed but was unsure how. He stated that the 7-2 vote is from a diverse group that 
worked diligently on this. 
Terry Hilgendorf representing the Realtors Association stated other than fire issues they were 100% 
in favor of the subdivision regulations. 
 



Chairman Olson called for more Proponents – no one approached the Commission. 
Chairman Olson called for Opponents; 
John Harding representing the Home Builders Association of Great Falls HBAGF and Montana 
Building Industry Association’s MBIA commended the subdivision regulations and stated they 
would have a negative impact. He continued to state that the 2007 draft is unworkable and 
unattainable and that the sections do not apply to Montana law. He presented a letter from legal 
representation to insure the regulations are complying with law. (Attached is letter for the record) Mr. 
Harding continued by highlighting points in the letter. He also stated that fire protection should be a 
community responsibility.  
Jeff Hoffstad from Great Falls Association of Realtors stated they have worked closely with the 
Planning Board but changes still need to be made and requested time to review the regulations. 
Terry Hilgendorf stated he was more in favor then in opposition and echoes Ms. Popa’s comments. 
He stated that the fire protection portion needs to be removed and reworked, and brought back. 
Mr. Hilgendorf presented his concerns in written format (which is attached and made record), His 
main concern in which he emphasized are his own comments and he was concerned how this would 
have an impact on local services. 
Clayton M. Braden spoke concerning flood area drainage, imposed regulations and costs. He stated 
he was opposed to more regulations and more fees. 
John Popa spoke in opposition mainly concerning the fire protection and questioned why they were 
in the subdivision regulations. He continued by giving examples of the lack of timely fire protection 
and suggested that a department similar to Weed and Mosquito be developed in which county 
residents would pay for fire protection. 
Jason Coy of the Gore Hill Fire Department emphasized public safety regarding fire protection and 
stated none of their recommendations are in the subdivision regulations. He had some suggestions 
and requested the Commission revisit the fire regulations. 
David Monroe whom has worked for the rural fire department for three and a half years stated that 
there is a problem that needs to be fixed and money is involved, he requested a vote be taken to 
increase taxes to fight fires. He also stated that regulations are good but stated some of the verbiage is 
horrible and if someone states it may have an adverse impact, in can prevent a subdivision from 
being created.   
John Rosenbaum stated he is opposed to the regulations in their present format, and had concern 
about fire safety then gave some suggestions to the Commission.  
Chairman Olson called for any more comments in opposition- no one approached the Commission. 
The Public Hearing was closed at 10:30 am. 
Commissioner Beltrone made a Motion to approve Resolution of Intent 07-56 to adopt amended 
County Subdivision Regulations 
No vote on this motion 
Commissioner Briggs made a Motion to table the motion to adopt the Resolution of Intent until the 
next meeting. 
Motion carries 3-0 
 
AGENDA ITEM #3 
PUBLIC HEARING WITH A MOTION TO APPROVE/DISAPPROVE RESOLUTION OF 
INTENT 07-57 TO ADOPT COUNTY EVASION CRITERIA FOR LOCAL 
DETERMINATION OF EVASION OF THE SUBDIVISION AND PLATTING ACT 
 
Chairman Olson opened this Public Hearing at 10:34 am and the reading of the public notice was 
waived without objections. 
Mr. Clifton gave a synopsis and requested action be tabled until the next Commission meeting in 
order to clarify verbiage and seek advice from the attorneys.  
Chairman Olson called for Proponents; 



Terry Hilgendorf approached the Commission to request this be tabled and stated he appreciated 
Brian Clifton taking the time to look at this.  
Chairman Olson called for Proponents two more times- no one approached the Commission. 
Chairman Olson called for Opponents; 
Clayton M. Braden requested the Commission postpone this matter until the September 11, 2007 
meeting. 
Chairman Olson called for Opponents two more times – no one approached the Commission. 
Chairman Olson closed the public hearing at 10:38 am 
Commissioner Briggs made a Motion to table the motion to adopt the Resolution of Intent until the 
next meeting. 
Motion carries 3-0 tabled until September 11, 2007 meeting 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM #4 
MOTION TO APPROVE/DISAPPROVE FINAL RESOLUTION 07-53 CREATING 
HEAVENS VIEW LANE RURAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
Chairman Olson presented this intercap loan and stated it was tabled until further investigation could 
be done regarding further assessments. Jess Anderson questioned if this would go on 2008 
assessments and was confirmed they would begin then.   
Commissioner Briggs made a MOTION to remove this item from the table to act upon at the this 
time.  
Chairman Olson opened the meeting for public comment in which there was none. 
Motion carries 3-0 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM #5 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN DECISIONS OF BOARD AND ALLOANCE OF PUBLIC 
COMMENT ON MATTERS THE COMMISSION HAS JURISDICTION. 
Chairman Olson introduced Milo Halverson as an opponent of the County Option Tax.  
Mr. Halverson asked how many people where aware that they are being taxed a County Option Tax 
on each vehicle they own.  Mr. Halverson continued by stating MCA 61-357 and MCA 61-536, he 
also brought to the Commissions attention Resolution 84-58. He question where the County Option 
Tax money goes now. In which Jess Anderson stated it is split up between the City, Incorporated 
Towns, and the County. Mr. Halverson requested the Commission repeal this. Chairman Olson stated 
it is a Legislative procedure.   
Clayton M. Braden approached the Commission and thanked the 80,000 people in Cascade County. 
He also stated he did not agree with the Decay Ordinance as it is exempt from Ag equipment, and is 
not being enforced. He commented that humans also decay and that Ag products are more important. 
Bob Stubbs announced he will be leaving in four months and thanked all those involved in helping 
with the Neighborhood Council #4 issue.  He also recommended the county adopt and set up some 
council within the county to report issues to the Commission.  
Chairman Olson agreed that councils do work and stated he would like to create a county council 
structure to help the Commission.   
 
 
ADJOURNMENT; 
Meeting adjourned at 10:58 am 
 
 
 
 



 
 


